
1 

APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA 

MAY 8, 2018 
7:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Planning Commission Chairman Engstrom called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning 
Commission of May 8, 2018 to order at 7:00 P.M. 
CALL OF ROLL: 
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present: 
Judy Coughlin, Matthew Engstrom, and Dennis Schilling. 
Members Absent: Mark Lobermeier. 
Also Present: Council Liaison Lisa Iverson and Zoning Administrator Fred Weck. 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 
Chairman Engstrom determined a quorum was present. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
OPEN FORUM: 
“An opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on items not on the 
current Agenda.  Items requiring Planning Commission action maybe deferred to staff for research 
and future Planning Commission Agendas if appropriate.” 

No members of the public spoke. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, 

Minnesota Planning Commission for April 24, 2018. 

Commissioner Coughlin asked for clarification of the discussion on page 6 about controlled access.   

Chair Engstrom explained his comments and noted that he had changed his mind during the 
meeting, so for ease of understanding, the minutes should be changed to state “Chair Engstrom 
asked what uses the residents would be okay with for controlled access lots.”    

Commissioner Coughlin stated that slough is spelled incorrectly as “slew” on page 3.   

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, TO APPROVE THE “REGULAR MEETING” 
MINUTES OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR APRIL 24, 2018, 
WITH CORRECTIONS AS NOTED. 
Voting Aye: Coughlin, Engstrom, and Schilling. 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain: None 

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
2. Interim Conditional Use Permit  Scenic Sign Corp. 
 Electronic Graphic Display Sign  Wyoming Area Creative Arts Community 
       5521 East Viking Boulevard 



2 

Eric Peterson stated that Gene Hallberg has generously donated $25,000 for a nice sign for the art 
center.  He stated that this sign will be a great way to communicate upcoming events.  He noted 
that they understand there are rules and want to be respectful of their residential neighbors.  He 
stated that they are looking at getting a programmable sign that will look much better than their 
plywood sandwich board sign.  He stated that it will be dark gray with white lettering. 

Commissioner Coughlin asked if it would just be two lines that are lit. 

Mr. Peterson stated it is an LED display, so they have the option to program it smaller or larger, 
similar to a program on a computer.  He stated that it would not be scrolling letters but, will change 
occasionally.   

Chair Engstrom asked if Mr. Peterson had worked with the City on this application. 

Mr. Peterson stated that when he was getting bids, he ran it by Zoning Administrator Weck, to 
make sure he was planning things within the ordinance.  

Commissioner Coughlin stated that in the recommendations, there are several references to 
Section 40-752 (12) a, that they would need to comply with.  She asked if the applicant would need 
to comply with items b.- e. in this section, as well.     

Zoning Administrator Weck stated he agreed that it would need to comply with all of it, not just (a). 

Chair Engstrom stated that there was a lot wrong in the staff report.  He stated that wasn’t sure how 
to proceed because there is enough wrong that the Commission may want to see a resubmission 
before action is taken.  He gave examples of the errors and noted that he thinks the setback from 
the road and the maximum size listed is incorrect.  He stated that some of these things stood out to 
him because they had just worked on the sign ordinance and he thought it had been crafted so it 
would be difficult to have this kind of sign in a residential district.  He stated that the tone of the staff 
report seemed like it is no big deal that this sign will be in a residential area.  He read aloud from the 
ordinance and questioned the definition of public or quasi-public and whether this applies. He 
expressed concern about setting a precedent.  

Commissioner Schilling questioned what the City defined as “public use”. 

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that public use is defined as uses owned or operated by city, 
municipal, county, state or other government use.   

Chair Engstrom reiterated that there is no definition for public uses or quasi-public.  He questioned 
whether it would be something like a VFW, Lions Clubs, or Mason Lodge.  He questioned whether it 
meant that there are no fees to be part of it.  He stated in the business and industrial districts he 
stumbled on the lighting section, 40-565 states that all illuminating signs for advertising have to be 
off between midnight and sunrise.   

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she feels this issue could be addressed with conditions. 

Chair Engstrom suggested tabling discussion of this item until there is a definitive answer on what 
quasi-public means.  He stated that he is not comfortable making a decision without having all of the 
correct information.  He stated that he wants to get this right for the first one of its type in the City.    

Commissioner Coughlin and Commissioner Schilling agreed that tabling this item until the terms are 
adequately defined and the staff report has been corrected was a good idea. 

Mr. Peterson wanted to clarify that their organization is totally non-profit and there is no paid staff.  
They do offer some art work for sale, and whenever it sells, 70% goes to the artist and 30% is retained 
by the art center.   



3 

Chair Engstrom stated that he should have prefaced his remarks with the fact that he really likes all 
the stuff the art center is doing in town and the activities they offer for Stagecoach Days.  His concerns 
are based around the fact that this is in a residential district and he was uncomfortable with the whole 
“interim” thing as part of the Conditional Use Permit.  He stated that he would like it to be changed 
by use rather than the ownership.   

Commissioner Schilling stated they can address things like controlling display times and the size of 
the sign, but it still needs a clear definition of what quasi-public means and whether it applies in this 
case.   

Chairman Engstrom opened the Public Hearing at 7:27 p.m. 
Karen Ruben, 5571 East Viking Blvd, stated she lives adjacent to the property.  She read her 
statement aloud.  She stated that she has no problem with the art center but, does have concerns.  
She noted that they have owned their home since 1977.  She stated that she understands the lighted 
sign will bring more attention to the art center, but is concerned about the distraction to commuters 
on East Viking Blvd. She stated that she doesn’t feel a lighted sign will be in keeping with the 
residential area.  She also expressed concerns with the maintenance and safety hazards that exist 
at this site.  She referenced pictures that she distributed of the driveway leading to the parking area 
that is in very bad shape.  She stated that it is intermittently blocked by sawhorses and torn orange 
flags which results in people having to park along the street, which creates a huge blind spot for 
residents trying to back out of their driveways.  She stated that she is in close proximity to the 
unpaved driveway to the center and they find the dirt blowing their way troublesome and many times 
have to keep their windows closed.  She stated that the blowing dirt and dust also causes problems 
with keeping the outside of their home and their vehicles clean.  She stated that if Gene Hallberg can 
donate $25,000 for a sign, something should be able to be done with the unmanicured area, the 
driveway and parking lot and not have people parking on the street.  She stated that she has nothing 
against the art center but, feels strongly about the issues she raised. 

Commissioner Schilling asked if the sign was restricted as far as hours of operation and followed the 
ordinance, would she object to it.   

Ms. Ruben stated she would object to it because she feels it will be a huge distraction.  She stated 
that she didn’t think restricting the use between midnight and sunrise would be sufficient. 

Commissioner Schilling stated that Chair Engstrom had mentioned that the Methodist church had a 
lit sign. He asked what direction it faced. 

Chair Engstrom stated that it is sort of kitty corner.   

Commissioner Schilling asked if the church would be considered quasi-public and if not, how did they 
get their lit sign. 

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that their lit sign and permits pre-date his time at the City, so he 
wasn’t sure off the top of his head. 

Ms. Ruben stated that the art center is also putting up flags on each side of the building.  She asked 
how often those would be out there. 

Mr. Peterson stated that they only put them out when they are open which is 5 days a week for about 
4 hours at a time.      

Ms. Ruben stated she appreciated that they were not planning to have the sign be a bold red, but in 
more subtle colors. 

Chair Engstrom closed the Public Hearing at 7:37 p.m. 



4 

The Commission reviewed the zoning map and looked at the location of the Methodist church and 
the art center. 

Chair Engstrom reiterated that there is enough wrong with the staff report that he suggests tabling 
this item. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, TO TABLE DISCUSSION OF THE INTERIM 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR SCENIC SIGN CORP., ELECTRONIC GRAPHIC DISPLAY 
SIGN FOR WYOMING AREA ARTS COMMUNITY, 5521 EAST VIKING BLVD, UNTIL THE NEXT 
MEETING, AND GET A LEGAL DEFINITION OF QUASI-PUBLIC AND CORRECTED STAFF 
REPORT INFORMATION. 

Voting Aye: Coughlin, Engstrom, and Schilling. 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain: None 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he will also take a closer look at the areas of concern raised 
by Ms. Ruben.  
NEW BUSINESS: 
3. None. 

OLD BUSINESS: 
4. None. 

COMMUNICATIONS: 
5. City of Wyoming Respectful Workplace Policy 18-01 and City of Wyoming Sexual 
Harassment Prevention Policy 18-02 

Zoning Administrator Weck stated these policies were adopted by the Council at their last meeting 
and were included on the agenda for informational purposes, not discussion. 

UPDATES: 
 
6. None.  
 
Chair Engstrom asked a question about the new dental office.  He asked when the sidewalk 
connection would be completed and when the grass would be seeded.  Zoning Administrator Weck 
will contact them.  He stated that he thought the road restrictions were part of the problem and delay, 
which just came off last week.   
 
Chair Engstrom reminded the Commission of the All Boards Meeting on May 16, 2018. 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, TO ADJOURN THE REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR MAY 8, 2018 AT 7:47 P.M. 
Voting Aye: Coughlin, Engstrom, and Schilling. 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain: None 


